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State of Rhode Island 

Department of Administration / Division of Purchases 

One Capitol Hill, Providence, Rhode Island 02908-5855 

Tel: (401) 574-8100   Fax: (401) 574-8387 
 

 

Solicitation Information 

September 11, 2013 

 

 

ADDENDUM # 2 

  

RFP #7494370 
 

RFP Title: Center for Excellence and Advocacy 

 

Bid Opening Date & Time: September 25, 2013 at 10:00 AM  
 

 

 

Notice to Vendors: 

 

 

 
ATTACHED ARE VENDOR QUESTIONS WITH STATE RESPONSES, AS WELL AS THE LIST OF 

ATTENDEES FROM THE PRE- BID/PROPOSAL CONFERENCE HELD ON 8.28.2013 AT 10:00 AM. 

NO FURTHER QUESTIONS WILL BE ANSWERED.  

 

 

 

 

David J. Francis 

Interdepartmental Project Manager 

 

 
 

 
Interested parties should monitor this website, on a regular basis, for any additional information that may be posted. 
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Vendor Questions for RFP # 7494370 Center for Excellence and Advocacy 

 

Question 1:    The RFP states that the award will be contingent on the availability of 

funds. What is the estimated range of funding that is expected to be available to 

support the CEA? 

 Answer to question 1: The funding will be determined based on the 

responses to the RFP. 

Question 2:   Will the contractor be allowed to provide funding for initiatives that 

may not have a subcontractor identified in the application and may be awarded 

through an application process?  

 
Answer to question 2:  Applicants will not be disqualified for having 

elements within the application described as being contingent on a bidding 

process.  However, all programmatic aspects of the RFP should be described with 

deliverables and viable cost proposals. Applicants with named entities as 

subcontractors for specific tasks not being completed by the lead agency will 

likely receive higher scores.  These named entities should provide MOUs or 

letters of support to indicate that they have agreed to conduct the scope of work 

described in the RFP for a negotiated budget amount. The cost proposal must 

reflect the overall viability of the entire RFP. Failure to allocate sufficient funds 

for subcontracted work may result in a renegotiation of budget line items during 

contracting.  This renegotiation will result in no increase in funding, but rather a 

reallocation of funds, with the requirement to fulfill all scopes of work identified 

in each section of the RFP. 

 

Question 3: On page 14 there are bullets under the heading of “Goals”.  Are these 

goals the Departments goals for data collection and analysis or the goals for the CEA 

contractor?  They appear to be the Department’s goals. Please clarify. 
 

 Answer to question 3: The goals on page 14 are a joint venture between 

the Center for Excellence and BHDDH. The CEA will be expected to implement 

the surveys and process the information with NASDDDS, HSRI and BHDDH 

staff.  The CEA will be expected to present the results of their efforts to BHDDH 

in regular reports. These reports will provide an evaluation of the quality of care 

being provided to participants in the DD system. The CEA will be expected to 

compare and contrast RI results of the survey with other state’s survey results. 

BHDDH will use the data that the CEA produces to help establish a system that is 

driven by consumer outcomes. The CEA will be expected to be an annual 

participant in collecting this survey data. 

 

Question 4:   On page 16 does the Staff Experience and Credentials section apply 

just to staff working directly for the CEA contractor or also for subcontractors?  

 
  Answer to question 4: Staff experience and credentials should describe 

both the direct reports and key members of the subcontractors. 
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Question 5: Which survey instruments will RI be implementing as part of NCI? As 

indicated in the Appendix A: National Core Indicator the number of survey 

instruments employed influences costs.  
   

Answer to question 5: At minimum, the CEA or a subcontractor will 

conduct the adult consumer survey, the family survey and the employment 

outcomes (sections 1-3 of the National Core Indicators).  In addition the CEA or 

subcontractor will work with BHDDH to facilitate the periodic collection of 

additional administrative or other data. 

 

Question 6: What is the time frame for completion of the NCI surveys?  RFP states 

April 2013. If it is April 2014 will there be room for negotiation depending on when 

this contract is awarded?  
   

Answer to question 6: The surveys should be completed by April 2014. If 

the contract award is delayed there will be room for negotiation. Applicants 

should base a 12-month proposal on a January 1, 2014 award date. 

 

Question 7: Customized employment, IPS and integrated community based 

employment are all approaches that have an individual job (not group or enclave) as 

the outcome.  Is individual employment the desired goal for all employment services 

provided through the Department?  
   

Answer to question 7: Yes, with the necessary Supported Employment 

Services at a Supported Employment Placement as defined by and in compliance 

with the Interim Settlement Agreement. 

   

Question 8:  I notice the intent to award a contract for a period of two years, with 

optional renewal for up to five years. For the cost evaluation, is it the expectation 

that the bid cover two years?  
 

Answer to question 8: The Department's goal is a long term commitment 

to develop the Center for Excellence and Advocacy.  For fluidity and a continuum 

of excellence the initial goal would be a two year contract.  For budgetary and 

programmatic purposes all bid proposals should be based on a 12-month period 

beginning on January 1, 2014. 

 

Question 9:   Is the budget requirement a one year representation? 

 

Answer to question 9: All budgets should reflect a yearly budget starting 

on January 1, 2014. See response to question #8 for more details. 

 

 

Question 10: Will the CEA employ the job developers or will existing providers 

employ their own? 
 Answer to question 10: It is anticipated that the CEA will employ job 

developers who will meet the minimum requirements of the ISA including 

meeting deadlines for employment goals for DD participants.  Therefore, 

they will be expected to identify employers with positions that participants 
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will fill. These job developers will also work closely with provider’s 

employment specialists and other employment professionals to help build 

their capacity to be able to employ DD participants rapidly in minimum 

wage or above, market-based positions. A portion of the funding for this 

work is contained in the BHDDH Medicaid rates and should be structured 

to maximize billing capacity. 

 

Question 11:   What are the regulations around training employment professionals?  

Will the National Standards be used? 
 

  Answer to question 11: Currently BHDDH has minimum qualifications 

for any employee who provides direct assistance to Participants in Section 11.05 

of the "Rules and Regulations for the Licensing of Developmental Disability 

Organizations" and outlines trainings that must be provided to employees in 

Section 11.09.  In newly proposed regulations, section 45.08 states: “By January 

1, 2015, all Job Developers shall be credentialed and have satisfactorily 

completed a training program approved by the Department.” Any new regulations 

related to National Standards would have to go through the public process. 

 

Question 12: Are the existing providers of employment prohibited from applying to 

this RFP as the lead agency? 
 

 Answer to question 12: There are no prohibitions for any agency, local or out of 

state, to be the lead agency or a subcontracted agency. Any one agency may be in 

multiple responses. 

 

Question 13: How is this project being funded? 

 

Answer to question 13: BHDDH will fund this project, however, 

applicants that are able to braid or leverage additional funding will likely be more 

competitive in their cost proposals. 

 

Pre-Bid Conference Questions and Answers 

 
RFP# 7494370 

TITLE: Center for Excellence and Advocacy 
 

Q#14: On Page 21, need clarification on the number of pages allowed in the Technical 

proposal. 

A#14: The Narrative portion of the Technical Proposal is limited to thirty-five (35) pages 

(this excludes any appendices). As appropriate, resumes, CVs, copies of certifications 

and licenses of key staff that will provide services covered by this request should be 

included in a separate appendix. The Executive Summary and Table of Contents are also 

not part of the 35 page limit. 

 
Q#15: Some sections of the RFP identify a single entity as the successful applicant, 

others describe subcontracts.  Can an applicant apply for just one section of the RFP? 

A#15: No, applicants cannot simply apply for one section of the RFP.  One lead agency 

must be the respondent; however, subcontracting is anticipated and encouraged as no one 
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entity is expected to have the expertise to fulfill all aspects of the RFP. Any one agency 

can be part of multiple proposals. 

 
Q#16: Will a list of the names of the individuals on the review team be made publicly 

available? 

A#16: The names of the individuals serving on the technical evaluation team will be 

made available to the public through an Access to Public Records Request once the bid is 

awarded. 

 
Q#17:. Will a list of names of who worked on the proposal be made publicly available? 

A#17:  No; a team of BHDDH staff from multiple units within the Department 

contributed to the development of this proposal. 
 
Q#18:. It is my understanding that the Department of Justice will be reviewing the RFP, 

will they have any influence on selecting the successful applicant?  

A#18: No. 

 
Q#19: Will an individual with I/DD or a family member of an individual with I/DD be 

included on the review team? I would recommend that someone like this has input. 

A#19: The general practice that Purchasing recommends for the composition of the 

technical review committee is as follows: 

Membership composition should consist of state employees, selected for their subject 

matter expertise (eg. fiscal rep., program rep, legal staff, and/ or IT staff).  Non-state 

employees chosen for their expertise- must be approved on an exception basis by 

the Division of Purchasing. The Agency must submit a compelling rationale for why 

they are required to participate.  If approved, they must sign a non-disclosure 

agreement form to ensure that confidentiality and conflict of interest concerns are 

met. Also, the non-state employee member cannot vote or rate the proposals.  

 

Q#20: On Page 14 the RFP states that surveys must be entered by April, 2013. Should 

the deadline be April, 2014? 

A#20: Yes. 

 
Q#21: When is the contract expected to be awarded so that writers can plan a timeline 

and cost proposal for completing deadlines in the data collection portion and the Interim 

Settlement Agreement (ISA)? 
A#21: Purchasing has fast-tracked this RFP, and the expectation is that it will continue to 

progress as quickly as possible.  The deadline for submission is September 25, 2013 at 

10:00 AM (Eastern Time). The hope is to have contracts awarded before 2014, but a firm 

timeline cannot be predicted. Respondents should calculate a budget for a 12-month 

period starting on January 1, 2014. 

 
Q#22: Should the proposal include existing state funding for existing advocacy programs 

or will this be separate? 

A#22: Existing state costs for advocacy programs should be included in the proposal. 

 
Q#23: Are or will the applications and other materials associated with this RFP all be 

public documents? On page 3 of the RFP it states that there will be no “public opening,” 

what does that mean? 
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A#23: As this is a RFP, at the opening- only the names of the vendors that applied are 

read.  The cost proposals are sealed and will not be opened. In order for a vendor’s cost 

proposal to be unsealed, the vendor must pass the technical proposal point threshold 

described in the RFP to advance to the cost phase.  If the vendor does not reach the point 

threshold in the technical evaluation phase, then the cost is not opened and it will remain 

on file unsealed in the unsuccessful folder for the given solicitation. All other documents 

are considered “public” and are able to be accessed by the public through an APRA 

request. 

 
Q#24: The data collection portion of the proposal references the use of the SIS.  Will the 

applicant be responsible for conducting the SIS or is this just a description of what is 

being used by the state. 

A#24: It is a description of what is being used.  Respondents to this proposal are not 

expected to conduct the SIS. 

 
Q#25: The RFP describes the use of job developers and other related staff. Does the 

applicant need to have the ability to bill for these services, contract with an entity that can 

or charge for them as part of the proposal? 

A#25: As the proposal points out in numerous places, applicants able to collaborate with 

other entities to blend or leverage additional funding through existing programs, grants or 

gaining the necessary credentials to bill for services, will likely be more successful due to 

the weighting of the cost proposal in the scoring of the RFP. These types of arrangements 

will need to be supported, ideally, with MOUs, although detailed letters of support will 

suffice.  

 

Q#26: On page 17, bullet 6.b. the RFP discusses Ability One Set Aside Contracts, what 

is the state’s interest in or plans for these kinds of contracts? 

A#26: We are looking for respondent’s experience with and understanding of these 

contracts if any.  

 

Q#27: ORS currently has a number of job developers, is the applicant expected to make 

use of their job developers or hire their own? 

A#27: While applicants are encouraged to leverage or braid funding to make their 

applications more competitive, this RFP was developed to comply with the ISA and fill 

an unmet need.  Applicants are strongly encouraged to read the ISA prior to writing their 

proposals. 
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